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OWNER'S NAME:

Mr. and Mrs. Edward R. Lafferty. Jr,
STREET AND NUMBER:

Elsing Green
Cl TY OR TOWN:

JL^GJLWilliam Court House
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Elsing Green, built in 1758, is a very large brick U-shaped early 
Georgian mansion, with two wings projecting to the north. In elevation 
the house is seven-bays long on the south or river front, and is two 
full stories high beneath a hipped roof. Each side elevation is five- 
bays long, with a center door, and on the north or rear facade appears 
the two wings and the axial court. The latter has a center door with a 
window on either side, and the north ends of the wings have a narrow 
window on either side of the chimney pier. Except for the narrow wing- 
windows all of the others have nine over nine light sash, with the upper 
slightly diminishing in size. The brickwork, regularly laid in Flemish 
bond throughout, has rubbed and gauged dressings and a high molded water 
table. Windows are topped by flat arches of splayed bricks. The second 
floor level is marked by a string course of gauged brick, unmolded and 
four courses high. In restoration work a reconstructed pedimented gauged 
brick doorway (such as lines in the original brickwork showed onee exis­ 
ted) was installed in the center of the south or river facade.

The unusual length and depth of Elsing Green gives an impression of 
great size, which is accentuated by the site of the house on a high 
terrace overlooking the Pamunkey River. The main house is flanked by 
two old and detached dependencies. These are a story and a half high, of 
brick, and parallel the long axis of the mansion. The eastern dependency 
may date from 1719. The western dependency is a restored kitchen. A 
smoke house and dairy have been reconstructed on their original founda­ 
tions and are symmetrically placed in the building complex.

In plan, an off-center hall extends from the south center-door 
halfway through the mansion, to intersect a east-west cross hall which 
runs the length of the mansion. The southeast corner is occupied by a 
very large east parlor, the southwest corner by a smaller living room, 
and each >&f the north wings by a single large room. The east and west 
ends of the cross hall each contain stairway set against the south wall 
that leads to the second floor. This plan is repeated in the second 
story, where there are 4 bedrooms. The original interior finish of 
Elsing Green was destroyed in a fire around 1800 and the existing wood­ 
work dates from the 1930 rebuilding and is a reconstruction of 18th- 
century woodwork. The mansion and grounds are well kept, and much care 
and expense has been used in the restoration, which was carried out with 
the help of specialists from Colonial Williamsburg. The mansion is used 
as a private residence and is not open to visitors.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built in 1758, Elsing Green was the home of Carter Braxton, a 
signer of the Declaration of Independence for Virginia, planter, and 
politician, from 1758 to 1767. The exterior of this fine Georgian 
house is little^altered. The original interior, however, was destroyed 
by a fire around 1800 and the existing 18-century style interior 
woodwork was reconstructed and installed in the 20th-century.

Brief Sketch of the Life of Carter Braxton, 1736-1797

Carter Braxton was born at Newington Plantation, King and Queen 
County, Virginia, on September 10, 1736, the son of a wealthy planter. 
He was educated at the College of William and Mary and was later a 
member of its board of visitors. In 1756 he married Judith Robinson, 
who died in December 1757. Braxton spent the years i758 to 1760 in 
England and on his return in 1761, married Elizabeth Corbin. In 1767 
Braxton built and moved to a new plantation house, "Chericoke," 
located in King William County, Virginia. Hd was a member of the 
House of Burgesses from 1761 to 1775 and also of the provincial conven­ 
tions of Virginia from 1774 to 1776. -He served as a delegate to the 
Continental Congress in 1776 but was not reappointed in 1777. He 
returned to Virginia and served in the House of the Virginia Assembly 
from 1777 to about 1797. Losses during the Revolution, his long 
public service, and his unfortunate commercial ventures during his 
last years had wrecked his fortune. In 1786 he took up residence in 
Richmond, Virginia, where he died on October 14, 1797. He was buried, 
however, in a unmarked grave in the family graveyard on the "Chericoke" 
plantation, King William County.

HISTORY OF HOUSE

The date 1758 and initials of the builder, Carter Braxton, are 
inscribed in a panel in the walls. The house is said to have been 
built by his brother George during Braxton's absence in England, 
1758-1760. In 1767 Carter Braxton moved to the new house he erected on 
"Chericoke" plantation. Elsing Green was sold to the Browne and 
Gregory families.
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8. Significance (1)
Elsing Green 

(Carter Braxton House 1758-1767)

About 1800 Elsing Green suffered a severe fire and the interior 
woodwork was almost completely rebuilt. The house was rehabili­ 
tated and restored by Mr. and Mrs. Beverley Causey in the 1920's. 
The present owners acquired the mansion and about 1,100 acres of 
land in 1932. The estate now includes about 3,000 acres, much 
of which is in pasture and farmland. The house and grounds are 
not open to visitors.

2. Boundaries for the Historic Site Elsing Green:

Approximately 753 acres in the shape of a trapezoid, including 
the Elsing Green plantation house and dependencies, starting at 
the northwest corner on the north shoulder of County Route 632 at 
latitude 37° 37' 15" N.- longitude 77° 02 f 42" W., proceeding 
southeast along the north shoulder of County Route 632 for about 
4100-feet to the northeast corner at a junction with a dirt road 
at latitude 37° 37 f 44" N. - long. 77° 02' 10" W., then going to 
the southwest along the east shoulder of the dirt road about 7000- 
feet to the southeast corner on the north bank of the Pamunkey 
River at lat. 37° 35 f 35" N. - long. 77Q 02' 38" W., then continuing 
along the north bank of the river to the north-west about 5200 
feet to the southwest corner at lat. 37° 36 f 05" N. - long. 77° 03' 
32" W., then returning to the northeast east in a straight line 
about 8000-feet to the beginning, the northwest corner. Precise 
boundaries, as described above, are recorded in black ink on a 
copy of U.S. Geological Survey Map: Tunstall Quadrangle, Virginia, 
7.5 Minute Series (Topographic), 1966, on file with the Branch 
of Historical Surveys, Division of History, Office of Archeology and 
Historic Preservation, National Park Service.

Total acreage in the Elsing Green Plantation (May 1971) is 
about 3,000 acres. Of this total about 753 acres are included in 
the historic site boundaries described above.


